City of Westminster

Title:

Meeting Date:
Time:

Venue:

Members:

Public Document Pack

Committee Agenda

General Purposes

Wednesday 25th February, 2015

6.00 pm

Rooms 3 & 4 - 17th Floor, City Hall, 64 Victoria Street,
London, SW1E 6QP

Councillors:

Melvyn Caplan (Chairman)
David Boothroyd

Robert Davis

Tim Mitchell

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda

Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the
ground floor reception at City Hall from 5.30pm. If you have
a disability and require any special assistance please
contact the Committee Officer (details listed below) in
advance of the meeting.

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter. If you require
any further information, please contact the Committee
Officer, Mick Steward; Head of Committee and Governance
Services.

Tel: 7641 3134; Email: msteward@westminster.gov.uk
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk




Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact
the Head of Legal & Democratic Services in advance of the meeting please.

AGENDA
PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)

1.

MEMBERSHIP

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services to note any changes
to the membership

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the
existence and nature of any personal or prejudicial interests in
matters on this agenda.

MINUTES

To sign the minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 2014.

ESTABLISHMENT OF A PENSION BOARD

Report of the Director of Corporate Finance and Investment.

MEMBERS ALLOWANCES SCHEME 2015/16

Report of the Head of Legal and Democratic Services.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN
CONSIDERS URGENT

Peter Large
Head of Legal & Democratic Services
17 February 2015

(Pages 1 - 4)

(Pages 5 - 10)

(Pages 11 - 36)



Agenda Iltem 3

MINUTES

CITY OF WESTMINSTER

General Purposes
MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

Minutes of a meeting of the General Purposes Committee held on Tuesday 25th
November, 2014, Room 15 - 17th Floor, Westminster City Hall, 64 Victoria Street,
London, SW1E 6QP.

Members Present: Councillors Melvyn Caplan (Chairman), David Boothroyd,
Robert Davis and Tim Mitchell

1 MEMBERSHIP

1.1 There were no changes to the membership.
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

2.1 There were no declarations of interest.

3 MINUTES

3.1 The chairman, with the consent of the members present, signed the minutes
of the meeting held on the 5 November 2014 as a true and correct record of
the proceedings.

4 POLLING DISTRICT AND POLLING PLACE REVIEW

4.1 Martin Pyroyiannos introduced the report which set out the conclusions of
investigations in respect of outstanding matters relating to the review of
polling district and polling places that was requested by the committee at its
meeting on the 5 November 2014.

4.2  Officers were asked to carry out some further investigation in respect of the
recommendation made in the 5 November Committee Report to change the
CHA ( Churchill') polling place from Churchill Gardens Youth Club, Churchill
Gardens Estate to Churchill Gardens Residents Hall, Churchill Gardens
Estate on the basis that the Residents Hall is more accessible than the Youth
Club as it is closer to main roads and bus stops. This was based in part on
feedback from residents to polling station staff at previous elections. The
committee was supportive of the change believing that the Residents Hall
would be easier for voters to find and provide better disabled access than the

Page 1



4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

existing station. However, members requested that the newly proposed
station is well advertised to people living on the estate.

Officers were also asked to investigate whether the polling district boundaries
within three wards, Maida Vale, Hyde Park, and Knightsbridge and Belgravia,
could be redrawn to provide better provision for voters and to effect a more
even distribution of voters across individual polling districts. Mr Pyroyiannos
provided an update on ward member responses to the revised proposals set
out in the report which were noted by members.

In respect of the polling district boundaries of the Hyde Park ward the
committee asked that the HPA polling district be amended to include
Eastbourne and Westbourne Terrace/Mews. In terms of the new polling place
that will need to be identified for a newly created HPC polling district,
Councillor Davis suggested that officers should make enquiries about
potential vacant space with Richard Banks of European Land. Councillor
Caplan also identified two developments that when completed could also offer
possibilities.

With regard to the Knightsbridge & Belgravia ward, the committee was
unconvinced by the proposed boundary line between the KBA and KBB
polling districts and requested that officers re-look at this. The use of the
Royal Geographic Society (RGS) as a polling station for the KBB polling
district was discussed. The committee raised concern about the previous
location of the polling station within the site and identifed the most appropriate
part of the building to use, particularly in terms of easy access from Exhibition
Road, which it requested should be discussed with Imperial College.

The committee discussed the polling stations in the Maida Vale ward.
Members expressed concern at the use of the Paddington Sports Centre as
the proposed polling place for the MVC polling district due to the long walking
distance to the polling station from the street. The committee agreed with
officers that the Spanish and Portuguese Synagogue in Lauderdale Road is
preferred and they requested that officers continue negotiations with the
Synagogue about its use. The committee also asked officers to keep in mind
the possibility of moving the polling place in the MVB polling district back to
Westminster College on Elgin Avenue following its redevelopment.

The committee thanked officers for their work to date and requested that the
outstanding issues are resolved within the next few months which should
include outstanding boundary district boundaries for the Churchill and
Lancaster Gate wards.

RESOLVED:
1. That the polling place for CHA (Churchill ) place be re-designated from
Churchill Gardens Youth Club, Churchill Gardens Estate, to Churchill

Gardens Residents Hall, Churchill Gardens Estate for the reasons set out in
the 5" and 25" November Committee Reports.

Page 2



2. That officers pursue the changes requested in respect of the polling district
boundaries of the Hyde Park, Maida Vale and Knightsbridge and Belgravia
wards as set out above.

3. That the polling district boundaries for Churchill and Lancaster Gate wards
also be looked into.

The Meeting ended at 6.06 pm.

CHAIRMAN: DATE

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Committee Report

City of Westminster

Date: 25 February 2015

Classification: For General Release

Title: The Establishment of a Pension Board
Report of: Director of Corporate Finance and Investment

Financial Summary:

Report Author and Contact Jonathan Hunt,
Details: jonathanhunt@westminster.qov.uk
Tel: 020 7641 1804

1. Executive Summary

1.1 The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 provides that the Secretary of State
may by regulations establish schemes for the payment of pensions and other
benefits for various categories of worker including local government workers.
Such regulations for a scheme (“scheme regulations”) must provide for the
establishment of a Pension Board to assist the scheme manager (i.e. the
Council or the committees to which such responsibility has been delegated), to
monitor and ensure compliance with the regulations and other legislation
relating to the management of the Pension Fund.

1.2. The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance)
Regulations 2015 are due to come into effect on 20th February 2015 and
require a Pension Board to be established by1 April 2015.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the establishment of a Pension Board, and its terms of reference
attached at Appendix 1 of the report, be approved.

2.2. That the approval of the Pension Board Code of Conduct, Conflicts of Interests
Policy, Training Policy and the process for selecting non-councillor members
of the Board be delegated to the Chief Executive following consultation with
the Chair of the General Purposes Committee and Chair of the Pensions
Committee.

3. Background
3.1 The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 (the “Act”) together with the Local

Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 2015
provide that each administering authority must establish a Pension Board by

Page 5



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

1st April 2015. The role of the Board is to assist the scheme manager with the
effective and efficient management and administration of the Local
Government Pension Scheme.

The Department for Communities and Local Government have been
consulting on the implementation of Pension Boards, as required by the Public
Sector Pensions Act 2013. This was initially reported to the Pensions
Committee in September 2014 and November. The final Regulations were
laid before Parliament and the final version of the guidance issued on 28th
January 2015.

The Act and the regulations provide that the “scheme manager” will be
responsible for administering, investing and managing the pension fund and
may delegate these responsibilities to a committee, an officer or an investment
manager (as appropriate). In the case of the City of Westminster, it proposed
that the Pensions Committee will continue to deal with these matters and
make decisions regarding them.

The Act states that the scheme regulations will provide for the establishment of
the pension board which will be responsible for assisting the scheme manager
(in WCC'’s case, the Pensions Committee) in securing compliance with the
scheme regulations and other legislation relating to the governance and
administration of the scheme. The guidance has provided some further
suggestions about what the Board will do, but leaving it very much up to local
determination. It is however clear that, while the Board can make
recommendations to the Pensions Committee, it will be up to the Committee
whether to action the recommendations. The Board will not be a decision
making body but will contribute to the governance of the pension scheme by
providing advice and scrutiny.

The proposed terms of reference, attached as Appendix 1, do not go into great
detail on the specific areas the Board will focus on as part of its role.
Suggestions as to areas of work have been published by DCLG and it is
proposed that Officers review the proposals and discuss with the Board when
established to determine which areas it wishes to include in its work plan.

The consultation in the summer on regulations raised the possibility of joint
pension boards. The shared service response argued that such an
arrangement for the three funds would allow for efficiencies and it would be
advantageous for it to be available as an option. The Regulations provide that
where the administration and management of a scheme is wholly or mainly
shared by two or more administering authorities those administering
authorities may establish a joint pension board if approval in writing has been
obtained from the Secretary of State. This will be explored however in the
interim three separate Boards are being set up for the tri-borough councils.

The regulations require pension boards to have an equal number of employer
representatives and scheme member representatives, the total of which
cannot be less than four. One clarification that has arisen from the final
regulations is that Councillors may now be members of the Pension Board as

Page 6



3.8

3.9

4.1

5.1

6.1

long as they do not have any direct involvement in the running of the pension
fund. The proposed terms of reference in Appendix 1 propose a membership
of six to ensure that a quorum is easily achieved at each meeting.

The terms of reference contain a number of provisions concerning training and
knowledge requirements for the members of the Board, conflicts of interest,
the management and reporting of meetings. The terms of reference also refer
to a number of separate policy documents relating to the operation of the
Board. These are currently being drafted and it is proposed that approval of
these documents is delegated to the Chief Executive following consultation
with the Chair of the General Purposes Committee and Chair of the Pensions
Committee.

All costs arising from the operation of the Pension Board will be met by the
Pension Fund as required by the regulations.

Financial Implications

The establishment of a Pension Board is a legal requirement and the costs of
supporting and staffing the work related to the Pension Board will be met by
the pension fund — since the work directly and solely relates to the running of
the pension fund.

Legal Implications

The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 2015 require the Council to
establish a Pension Board by 1 April 2015. The proposed terms of reference
comply with the requirements of the legislation and due regard has been paid
to the guidance. In order to exercise their functions it may be necessary for
members of the Pension Board to receive exempt information or reports. Any
such information would be provided specifically for that purpose and should
not be disclosed by the Board to any other party. This is a matter which will be
dealt with in the Pension Board Code of Conduct

Conclusion
Given the legal and regulatory requirement, the Committee is asked to

approve, and that Council then approves the establishment of the Pension
Board as set out in this paper.

If you have any questions about this report, or wish to inspect one of
the background papers, please contact: Jonathan Hunt; 7641 1840

Page 7



Appendix 1: Proposed Terms of Reference for Pension Board

Terms of Reference — City of Westminster

The purpose of this document is to set out the terms of reference for the local
Pension Board of the City of Westminster Pension Fund.

1.

Role of the Local Pension Board

The role of the local Pension Board is defined by section 5 of the Public
Service Pensions Act 2013 and regulation 106 of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) Governance Regulations 2013. It is to assist the
administering authority (the Council) with:

Securing compliance with the LGPS Governance regulations and any other
legislation relating to the governance and administration of the LGPS
Securing compliance with any requirements imposed by the Pensions
Regulator in relation to the scheme and

Ensuring effective and efficient governance and administration of the scheme-
recommendations to the Pensions Committee.

2. Membership

a. Appointment process

The Pension Board shall consist of six members and be constituted as
follows:

Three employer representatives comprising one from an admitted or
scheduled body and two nominated by the Council;, and

Three scheme member representatives whether from the Council or an
admitted or scheduled body.

The process for selecting non-Council nominated employer members of the
Pension Board is set out in a separate document “Selection of Pension Board
members”.

b. Quorum
The Pension Board shall be quorate when three Pension Board Members are
in attendance.

c. Chairman of the Board
The Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Board will be appointed by members
of the Board as the first business at their first meeting.

d. Substitute members
Each Scheme Member representative may agree a nominate substitute at the
first meeting who would act in the Board member’s absence.

Each Employer representative is there on behalf of the employer so may be
replaced by the nominating body with another individual representing the
same employer.

Page 8



e. Periods of office
Each Board member shall be appointed for a fixed period of two years, which
can be extended for a further two year period subject to re-nomination.

f. Termination

Each Board member should endeavour to attend all Board meetings during
the year and is required to attend at least two meetings each year. In the
event of consistent non-attendance by any Board member, then the
membership of that particular Board member should be reviewed by the other
Board members with advice from Officers

Other than by ceasing to be eligible as set out above, a Board member may
only be removed from office during a term of appointment by the unanimous
agreement of all the other Board members present at the meeting.

A Board member may choose not to continue in their role, and so shall notify
the Board accordingly following which the process for a replacement shall
start.

Board meetings

a. Frequency of meetings

The Board shall as a minimum meet twice a year, and where possible, should
aim to do so four weeks before the Pensions Committee meets. Meetings
shall take place at a time and place agreed by the Pensions Board on an
annual basis.

b. Voting rights

Each Board member will be entitled to vote and where a vote is taken the
matter will be decided by a majority of the Board members present and voting
but it is expected that the Pension Board will as far as possible reach a
consensus. In the event of an equality of votes, the Chairman will have a
second and or a casting vote.

c. Notice and circulation of papers

The papers for each Board meeting shall be circulated to all Board members
one calendar week in advance of each meeting. The papers shall be
published on the Council’'s website unless they contain material considered to
be exempt or confidential, as defined by the Local Government Act 1972 and
subsequently agreed as such by the Board.

d. Minutes
Minutes of all non-confidential or non-exempt parts of the Board’s meetings
shall be recorded and published on the Council’s website.

e. Secretariat service
Council officers will provide the Board with the secretariat services required.

Role of Advisers
a. Access to Council advisers

Page 9



The Board may request that one of the Council’s advisers attends a Board
meeting to provide advice or information to the Board. The request should be
submitted to the Chief Executive.

b. Appointment of advisers specifically for the Board
If the Board requires advice outside that already provided to the Council, then
the request should be made to the Pensions Committee and Council officers.

Budget and Expenses

a. Budget

An annual budget will be agreed by the Board for professional advice, training
or other purposes if such matters are required and Officers being authorised
to incur expenditure to implement the programme.

b. Expenses
Each Board member may claim, upon production of the relevant receipts,
travel expenses directly incurred in the work of the Pension Board.

Additional policies relating to the Board operations

a. Code of Conduct

The role of Pension Board members requires the highest standards of
conduct and therefore, all Board members are required to abide by the
Pension Board Code of Conduct.

b. Conflict of Interests

The Board is required to always act within these terms of reference. Board
members should abide by the separately prepared Conflicts Policy and keep
the policy under review.

c. Knowledge and understanding

All Board members are required to have sufficient knowledge and
understanding of pensions matters to undertake their roles. Board members
are expected to comply with the separate policy on knowledge and
understanding and maintain appropriate records.

Reporting

a. Annual report on activity

The Pension Board should prepare an annual report on its activities and its
compliance with these terms of reference and the associated policies. This
report should be addressed to full Council each year, in the first six months of
the financial year, reporting on the activities of the Pension Board for the
previous financial year. Such a report will be submitted to the Pension
Committee for noting prior to submission to Council.

b. Reporting recommendations

If the Pension Board determines that it wishes to make recommendations to
the Pension Committee, such recommendations should be reported to the
next meeting of the Pension Committee. The Pension Committee’s response
to the recommendation will be reported to the next meeting of the Pension
Board.

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 5

L General Purposes
City of Westminster ~ COMmMittee

Date: 25 February 2015

Classification: For General Release

Title: Members’ Allowance Scheme 2015/16
Report of: Head of Legal and Democratic Services
Wards Involved: None

Policy Context: Management of the Council

Financial Summary: There are no additional financial impacts

arising from the proposals set out in this report

Report Author and Contact Mick Steward
Details: Tel: 020 7641 3134
Email: msteward@westminster.gov.uk

1. Executive Summary

1.1 The Council is required, if it wishes to pay such allowances, to adopt a
Members’ Allowances Scheme on an annual basis with effect from 1 April
each year.

1.2 In drawing up the revised Members’ Allowances Scheme regard has been
given to the recommendations of the London-wide Independent Remuneration
Panel convened by London Councils whose most recent report (2014) is listed
with the relevant statutory guidance as background documents. These are
available upon request.

1.3 The Members’ Allowances base budget has remained unchanged since 2010.
During this period no increase for inflation has been made. Whilst changes to
some Special Responsibility Allowances are proposed there are no changes to
the base budget.

2, Recommendation

2.1 That the Council be recommended to approve the Members’ Allowances
Scheme attached as Appendix A for 2015/16 with effect from 1 April 2015.

Page 11



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

Background

There is a requirement for local authorities if they wish to adopt a Members’
Allowance Scheme on an annual basis, with effect from 1 April each year.
Schemes can be amended at any time.

When considering a new scheme, or amending an existing scheme, local
authorities must have regard to the report of the London Councils’
Independent Panel on the Remuneration of Councillors and relevant guidance
from the Secretary of State. The Committee and the Council gave
consideration to both of these when agreeing previous schemes and these
documents are available as background papers to this report. The Council's
overall budget for Members Allowances remains towards the bottom of all
London Boroughs. As a new report from the Independent Panel has just been
issued this is attached as Appendix B.

Members’ Allowances

The current Members’ Allowances Scheme was adopted by the Council on

5 March 2014. The Scheme for the 2015/16 municipal year requires the
approval of the full Council, upon recommendation from the General Purposes
Committee. As in previous years regard has been given to the findings and
recommendations detailed in the Panel's most recent report published in
2014.

The Chief Whip of the Majority Party has, as in previous years, been consulted
on the proposals, which have also been shared with the Chief Whip of the
Minority Party whose comments are set out in paragraph 6.1 below.

Basic Allowance

It is proposed to retain the level of Basic Allowance payable to all Members at
the same level, i.e £9,000 per annum.

Special Responsibility Allowance (SRA)

Significant adjustments were made to the scheme in 2010 which intended,
within the constraints of the existing budget provision, to ensure the scheme
rewarded more fully the duties and tasks undertaken by Members. The
changes to the Scheme proposed in this report continue the trend commenced
previously to visit the SRAs to tasks undertaken in particular day time duties.

The Scheme continues to reflect and reward the levels of duties undertaken

by Members in formal posts, including those bodies which have a particularly
frequent schedule of meetings.

Page 12



3.8

3.9

41

4.2

5.1

6.1

ICT Allowance

As part of the Members Allowances Scheme approved at the time of the City
Council elections in 2006, provision for the payment of a one off allowance of
£1,000 upon election was made to allow for the purchase of ICT equipment.
This was paid in 2010 and again in 2014. This is next due in 2018. The
interim Chief Information Officer has confirmed that the value of the IT
allowance continues to be acceptable given that the cost of IT commodity
computing kit has been stable or reducing over recent years and this is offset
against increasing demand.

Travel and Subsistence Allowance

The Council’'s scheme continues to be more restrictive than the Panel’s
recommendations and only allows for travel claims for approved duties outside
of the Greater London area (travel to other London Boroughs is not
reclaimable). No change to this part of the scheme is proposed. Reference is
included in the scheme to the availability of all zone permits for Members, for
use when undertaking official duties.

Legal Implications

There is a requirement that councils must make any scheme for the following
year to commence on 1 April. Schemes can be amended at any time but new
schemes can be introduced only from the start of each year commencing on 1
April. The approval of the full Council is necessary to any amendments to
existing schemes or the adoption of new schemes.

Regulations relating to Members’ Allowances require the publication of the
report of the Independent Remuneration Panel, the scheme of allowances and
details of the total sums paid to each Member under each category of
allowance in each year. The statutory guidance on the publicity requirements
suggests that details of allowances paid are made available on the Council’s
website together with information on the responsibilities of elected Members
and the duties and time commitment which the basic allowance is intended to
remunerate. This has previously been agreed by this Committee.

Financial Implications

The Members’ Allowances budget for 2015/16 is £1m (excluding provision for
the employer National Insurance contributions) and as in recent years no
inflationary element is proposed for 2015/16. The base budget has remained
unchanged since 2010 and the changes proposed can be met from the
existing budget.

Consultation

The Chief Whip of the Minority Party has no issues arising from the report.

Page 13



If you have any questions about this report, or wish to inspect one of
the background papers, please contact Mick Steward:
Email: msteward@westminster.gov.uk

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1972
BACKGROUND PAPERS

The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows:

* Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel 2014
» Guidance Issued by Secretary of State
* Report of the General Purposes Committee — 26 February 2014

Page 14



APPENDIX A

MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME FROM 1 APRIL 2014 TO 31 MARCH 2015

1.

This Scheme is made under, and in accordance with, the provisions of the
Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003.

The rates of allowances specified will apply until the Scheme is amended or
replaced, in which event the revised rates of allowances will be paid from the
date from which the amendment takes effect.

Subject to the relevant form being completed at the appropriate time,
entitlement to allowances under the Scheme commences on the date upon
which a Member is elected to the Council or is elected or appointed to an
office qualifying for special responsibility. The entitlement ceases on the date
upon which a Member ceases to hold a qualifying office or ceases to be a
Member of the Council (the fourth day after polling day in the year of City
Council elections, i.e. the Monday). An apportionment of the relevant
allowances will be made in the same proportion as the number of days that
the Member held Office or was a Member, bears to the number of days in the
relevant year.

Any Member may by notice in writing to the Head of Legal and Democratic
Services elect to forego for any period any part of an entitlement to an
allowance under the Scheme which will take effect from the date upon which
the notice is received by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services.

Allowances will be paid by equal monthly instalments on the 20th day of each
month. A £1,000 lump sum Basic Allowance for Members to purchase ICT
equipment will be paid to any Member elected at a by-election. No ICT
allowance shall be payable unless the confirmation is received that computer
hardware and an email address for Council use is available. This allowance
will not be paid if a Member received this allowance upon having been elected
at a by-election in the previous 12 months.

Except where so authorised by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services
any claim for travel and subsistence allowances must be made within two
months of the date of the duty to which the claim relates.

Basic Allowance

A Basic Allowance of £9,000 pa from 1 April 2015 will be paid to every
Member of the Council who formally elects to receive it.

Special Responsibility Allowance
Payments of Special Responsibility Allowances will be made to Members of
the Council who hold special offices unless they formally elect not to receive

them. Attached as Annex A is a list of the Special Responsibility Allowances
payable from 1 April 2015.

Page 15



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Conferences

Councillors are entitled to have their Conference fees met when approved by
the appropriate Cabinet Member, Committee or the Head of Members
Services in consultation with the relevant party Chief Whip and to receive
payments at the approved rates for travel and subsistence in respect of their
attendance at conferences held outside the City to discuss matters relevant to
the discharge of the Council’s functions.

Travel Expenses

Members and Co-opted Members are entitled to claim payment of Travel
Allowances at the rates of allowance set out in Annex B where expenditure
has necessarily been incurred to enable them to attend an approved duty,
defined as set out in Annex C, but only when travelling outside the Greater
London area. Members of Education Admissions and Exclusions Appeal
Panels are entitled to claim travel allowances for attendance at meetings
relating to their membership at the rates set out in Annex B.

Members of the Council shall be entitled to a City Council all zones official
parking permit for use when undertaking official council duties and otherwise
used in accordance with the rules relating to their use.

Subsistence

Subsistence may be claimed only for accommodation or meals at conferences
(approved in accordance with paragraph (i) of Annex C) where such costs are
not included in the conference fee, subject to the maximum allowance referred
to in Annex B.

Payments whilst under Suspension

Payments of allowances, basic and special responsibility, shall not be paid to
a Member who is suspended or if partially suspended that element of special
responsibility allowance which may be payable in respect of an office held by
the Member to which the partial suspension relates.

Pensions

No Members of the Council shall be entitled to membership of the Local
Government Pension Scheme in accordance with Section 7 of the
Superannuation Act 1972.

Publication
This scheme will be published as required by legislation. At the end of each

financial year the City Council is required by legislation to publish the sums
paid to councillors under the Scheme.

Page 16



ANNEX A

MEMBERS ALLOWANCE SCHEME — SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ALLOWANCES WITH EFFECT FROM 1 APRIL 2015

Office Holders Allowances Total Cost
(from 1.4.15) (from 1.4.15)
Proposed
Leader/Deputy Leader £ £
Leader of the Council (Chairman of the Cabinet) 35,000 35,000
Deputy Leader of the Council (Vice Chairman of the 17,500 17,500
Cabinet)

Cabinet Members

Each Cabinet Member (excluding the Leader and the 10,000 80,000
Deputy Leader) (x8)

Opposition Leader/Whips

Leader of the Opposition 8,000 8,000
Chief Whip (Majority) 5,000 5,000
Chief Whip (Minority) 4,000 4,000
Minority Party Deputy Leader 4,000 4,000
Policy and Scrutiny Committees

Each Scrutiny Committee Chairman (x4) 8,000 32,000
Minority Party Scrutiny Spokesperson 4,000 4,000
Other Committee/Sub-Committee Chairmen

Audit and Performance 8,000 8,000
Standards 3,000 3,000
Planning Applications Committees (x4) 4,000 16,000
Licensing Sub-Committees (x4) 4,000 16,000
Pension Fund Committee 3,000 3,000
*Licensing Committee Chairman 8,000 8,000

*

(If this Chairman is also appointed as a Chairman of a Licensing Sub-Committee
they will only receive the allowance payable to the Licensing Committee
Chairman)

Page 17



Deputy Cabinet Members

Each Deputy Cabinet Member appointed to support a
Cabinet Member (x16)

Other Panels

Chairman of Rating Advisory Panel
Chairman of Discretionary Housing Benefits Panel

Panel Members of the Discretionary Housing and
Benefits Review Panel and the Rating Panel (x8)

Council Members of CityWest Homes Board (x4)

Members of Pension Fund Committee except
Chairman (x3)

Committee Vice-Chairmen
Each Vice-Chairman of the Policy and Scrutiny

Committees and the Audit and Performance
Committee (x5)

Panel Members of the Licensing Sub-Committees, Members of the

3,000

3,000
3,000

2,000

2,000

2,000

2,000

48,000

3,000
3,000

16,000

8,000

6,000

10,000

Planning Applications Committees rate of £2,000 (x22 - £44,000). This separate

SRA is not payable to the Chairmen of these bodies.

*

Panel Member of the Adoption and Fostering Panel

Page 18

SRA only payable if Chairman is not a Member of the Cabinet.

3,000

3,000



NOTE REGARDING SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCES PAYABLE IN
RESPECT OF THE INDEPENDENT PERSON APPOINTED UNDER SECTION 28
OF THE LOCALISM ACT 2011 AND CO-OPTED MEMBERS ON OTHER
COMMITTEES

The Independent Person shall be paid a Special Responsibility Allowance of £500
pa.

The co-opted Members of the Children and Community Services Policy and Scrutiny
Committee shall be paid upon election and completion of the necessary acceptance
of office a sum of £300 to cover their out of pocket expenses for the period of their
office.

Page 19



ANNEX B

TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCES: (OUTSIDE THE GREATER
LONDON AREA)

(A)

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

TRAVEL

Travel by own private vehicle

Motor Mileage Allowance Pence Per Mile
Motorcycles:

Up to 150cc 8.5
151-500cc 12.3
Over 500cc 16.5

Cars & Tri cars:

500cc-999cc 35.8
1000-1199cc 39.9
Over 1199cc 49.4

Travel by Public Transport
The ordinary fare or any reasonably available cheap fare actually paid.
Travel by Taxi

Members are not permitted to claim for travel by taxi except as part of
onward or return travel to or from a conference held outside the Greater
London area where a claim for other travel expenses has or could be made.

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services shall be authorised to
reimburse claims for taxi fares, on an exceptional basis, for example on
medical advice, to and from approved duties. Such authority to be obtained
in advance, if possible.

Travel by Rail and Air
(i) The ordinary fare or any available cheap fare actually paid.

(i) Actual expenditure incurred on:
Reservation of seats
Sleeping accommodation for an overnight journey
Deposit on porterage of baggage

(iii) Travel by Air shall only be allowed when included as part of the formal
approval of the attendance at a conference or overseas visit. In the case
of overseas visits the cost to be met from the budget of the relevant
service.

Page 20



(e) Additional Travel Expenses

The rates specified above may be increased by not more than the amount of
any expenditure incurred on tolls, ferries, parking fees or cost of overnight
garaging of a motor vehicle, except that reimbursement of the Central
London Congestion Charge shall not be permitted.

(B) SUBSISTENCE

Subsistence claims for the reasonable costs of overnight accommodation or
meals not included in the Conference fee can only be claimed, up to a
maximum of £180 per day, upon production of relevant receipts.

(C)  RECEIPTS

Claims for reimbursement of expenditure by main line rail, air or any other
additional expenses, or subsistence, must be accompanied by a receipt.

Note: All Members shall be entitled to apply to the Head of Members’ Services for
the use of an all zones parking permit for their use whilst on Official Council
business only such permit only to be used in accordance with the guidance
notes for use issued with the permits.

Page 21



ANNEX C
LIST OF APPROVED DUTIES FOR TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCE:

The following are the categories of duties which qualify for payment of travel and
subsistence allowance, where such expenditure has been incurred (although
separate payments will only be reimbursed for travel outside the Greater London
area):

(a) Meetings of the Council, the Cabinet, their Committees, Sub-Committees,
Panels and meetings of the Westminster Scrutiny Commission and the Policy
and Scrutiny Committees and Task Groups of which the Councillor is a
member or at which a Councillor who is not a member of that body attends to
address the meeting with the prior permission (where such permission is
required under Standing Orders) of the Chairman.

(b)  Attendance as the Council’s representative at a meeting of any joint authority
or Committee of local authorities or of any Committee or Sub-Committee of the
body of which the Council is a constituent member.

(c) Attendance as the Council’s representative at meetings of any association
of authorities or Committee or Sub-Committee of the association of which
the Councillor is a member.

(d)  Attendance at duties which qualify for attendance allowance as single
member duties as specified in the Regulations, currently:

Meetings to determine the attendance of individual pupils at special schools.

Rota and other visits to inspect establishments on behalf of the Cabinet
Member for Children and Young People and Adults and Public Health.

(e)  Attendance at any other meeting convened by the Council, the Cabinet, a
Committee or Sub-Committee to discuss matters relevant to the discharge of
the Council’s functions and to which Members of more than one Party Group
have been invited.

() Attendance at any meeting, which is an induction training session, seminar,
presentation, or briefing arranged by Chief Officers of the City Council for all
Members of a Committee, Sub-Committee or Panel to discuss matters
relevant to the discharge of the Council’s functions and to which Members of
more than one Party Group have been invited.

(g0  Attendance as the Council’s representative in connection with the discharge of
the Council’s functions at meetings of outside bodies (excluding local authority
maintained schools), their Committees and Sub-Committees. The Head of
Legal and Democratic Services maintains a list of such representatives and
has delegated powers to add and remove bodies to this category to reflect
formal appointments made by the City Council.

Page 22



(h)

1)

(k)

()

(m)

Attendance at visits and inspection of sites and premises arranged by officers
or approved by Cabinet/Committee (eg opening of new facilities).

Attendance approved by the appropriate Committee or by the Head
Member Services, in accordance with his delegation at conferences
convened by other authorities and organisations to discuss matters
relevant to the discharge of the Council’s functions.

Attendance by the Leader of the Council, Cabinet Members, Deputy
Cabinet Members, Leader of the Opposition, and Chief Whips on matters
concerning the discharge of the Council’s functions.

Attendance by Cabinet Members, Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of
Committees and Sub-Committees concerning the discharge of functions
relevant to the work of their portfolio or their Committees or Sub-
Committees, including Chairman’s Call-over meetings and site visits.

Attendance before Parliamentary Committees, official bodies and inquiries
to give evidence or make representations on the council’s behalf.

Attendance as the Council’s appointee or nominee at any meeting. (This
excludes party group meetings but includes single member duties where
one member has been appointed, appearing as a Council witness at a
Planning Inquiry or court proceedings or member-level working groups
appointed by a Committee and representation on any outside body which
is not eligible for attendance allowance).

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank






Introduction

The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 (‘the Regulations’) authorise the establish-
ment by the Association of London Government (now London Councils) of anindependent remuneration panel to make
recommendations in respect of the members’ allowances payable by London boroughs. Such a panel (“the Panel’) was
established and reported in 2001, 2003, 2006 and 2010. It has been re-constituted and now. compnses Sir Rodney
Brooke CBE DL (Chair), Steve Bundred and Anne Watts CBE.

The Regulations require a review of the scheme every four years as a minimum. The current Panel has therefore complet-
ed a review of remuneration for councillors in London. We present our findings and recommendations in this report.

As a preparation for our work, we invited all London boroughs to give their views on the operation of the existing scheme.
We also invited comments from the Leaders’ Committee of London Councils. We are grateful for the feedback, which confirms
that the existing London scheme of members” allowances is still fit for purpose. We make recommendations accordingly.

The role of elected members

In our previous reports we reflected on the importance of the role of elected members. We repeat at Appendix B the
job profile for councillors which we included in our 2010 report. In that report, we quoted the Government-appointed
Councillors” Commission. The Commission took the view (which we continue to share) that: ‘Allowarices should be set
at a level that enables people to undertake the role of councillor while not acting as an incentive to do so. Allowances
are not shown by polls to be something which influences councillors to take on the role, though they are instrumental
in making it possible for some people to do so. Ifit is important that there are no ﬁnanaalmcentlves to being a councillor,
itis equally important that there should not be a financial disincentive.’

Itis clearly desirable that service as a councilloris not confined to those with independent means. We do not repeat the
arguments for appropriate remuneration for councillors which we have set out in our previous reports. We believe them
to be self-evident. But we do repeat our belief in the importance of local democracy and the role of councillors within
- it. Each London Borough is responsible for services crucial to its residents. Each is responsible for a revenue budget of

between £1.3bn and £3.3bn.

The responsibilities placed on local authorities continue to increase. The Localism Act 2011 devolved services to the
boroughs, though, it was complained, without the resources to discharge them. From April 2013 London boroughs
assumed the major new responsibility for health and wellbeing. Financial austerity brings substantial and further
challenges to councillors: local authorities are required to make substantial cuts in their spending. Changes to the welfare
system (particularly acute in London) give residual discretionary powers to local authorities. Councillors are faced with’
unenviable choices. Demand for local authority services continues to grow. In particular, there is exponential growth in the
number of old people and a corresponding increasein demand for social care. The strain on and competition for resources
increase the demands made on elected members.

Pensions

In the Panel’s first report we recommended that councillors should be eligible for pensions. Councillors are often re-
tired and currently have an average age of 60. Itis increasingly desirable to attract a younger cohort of people to serve
on councils. Access to a pension scheme is one way of achieving this. Councillors - especially those with lead responsibilities -
- must surrender earning potential elsewhere, earning potentlal which would normally be pens1onable It seems per-
fectly reasonable that allowances attracted by service as a councillor should be pens1onab[e

_The Government agreed with this view and the Regulations introduced the potential for councillors” allowances to be
pensionable upon the recommendation of the relevant Independent Panel. Accordingly the Panel recommended that
all London borough councillors under the age of 75 be eligible to join the local government pension scheme. Twenty
two of the 32 London boroughs have accepted that recommendation.

Page 26




In March 2014 the Government laid before Parliament Regulations which would end the right of councillors to enter the
local government pension scheme. These Regulations would extend not only to councillors but also to elected mayors

. (including the Mayor of London) and members of the Greater London Assembly, though Police and Crime Comm1ss1oners’

would retain the1r right of access to the pension scheme.

Councillor Sir Merrick Cockell, Chairman of the Local Government Association and Chair of London Councils from 2006
until 2010, responded: ‘The government’s decision isn’t about saving money, it is fundamentally about undermining

- the role of a councillor and undermining the role of local democracy’. He added: ‘Fair remuneration is important so that

people from all walks of life can afford to stand for office. Otherwise we risk local government becoming the exclusive
preserve of a privileged few who have the luxury of time and money to spare.” His remarks were endorsed by Clir Gary
Porter, Leader of the Local Government Association’s Conservative Group, who pointed out that ‘councillors are spend-
ing more time supporting their constituents and working with external organisations such as GPs, schools, police,

~local businesses and voluntary organisations. Secondly, recruitment and retention isbecoming increasingly difficult...

the commitment involved can be a deterrent when set against a possible loss of earnings and a potentially negative
effect on their careers.’

We believe that access to a pension scheme can be animportantfactorin making service as a councillor financially pos-
sible for a wider range of people. It is particularly important for those who, like elected mayors, leaders and portfolio
holders, give most or all of theirtime to service in local government and lose the opportunity to contnbute to a pension

scheme elsewhere. We would very much like the Government to reconsider this decision.
\

The current financial and political climate

Our 2010 report made no recommendations for increasing the levels of members’ allowances ottier than continuing
provision for annual adjustments in accordance with the annual local government pay settlement. As the Govern-
ment-appointed Councillors’ Commission pointed out in their 2007 report, the recommendations of the London Panel
had led to substantial convergence of members’ allowances across London. Indeed, the Councillors’ Commission rec-
ommended a similar system for the country as a whole. Following our recommendations, there is now considerable
congruity in the basic allowance made by London boroughs. However, most London boroughs have not adopted our

recommendations in their entirety. ‘ =

Our recommended allowances are tied to the annual local government pay settlement. Because of the current financial
climate, the local government pay settlement has been frozen in three of the last four years. In 2013/14 there was a
1% pay award. Acutely sensitive to the current financial austerity, only two boroughs increased members’ allowances
by that percentage. Indeed nine boroughs have reduced members” allowances since the date of our last report.

We are acutely aware that now is not the time to increase allowances made to councillors, though we continue to
recommend that members’ allowances be pegged to the annual local government pay settlement. Such pegging will
ensure that councillors can receive annual increases which are in line with those received by staff. We fully accept that,
in the current financial climate, it would be entirely inappropriate to increase members’ allowances (beyond the annual
updating). Nevertheless we hope that in the longer term the financial situation will permit further convergence of
members’ allowances around our recommendations. We continue to believe that the scheme we propose is sufficiently
flexible to accommodate the different political management arrangements of different London boroughs. Our view is
confirmed by the general response from the London boroughs

Page 27




| Consultation with the boroughs

Level of allowances l ' - : 3 )

In our consultation with the London boroughs we asked a number of questions. We enquired whether it was believed that

- the salary of an MP remains a sound comparator to fix the remuneration of a borough leader. [Our recommendations for

other special responsibility allowances are related to that recommended for Leaders.] Members of Parliament currently
receive a salary of £66,396, now rather more than our updated recommendation for the allowance for Leaders.

Though there was dissent from one Borough, another asserted that the Leader’s allowance should reflect the total

-remuneration package paid to Members of Parliament. A different borough pointed out that whereas a Member of

Parliament represented an electorate of 70,000 people, a leader was responsible for the delivery of a wide range of
services to a population of 300,000 — an electorate of 220,000 across an area three times as large as a parliamentary
constituency. Indeed, ‘it is arguable that the responsibilities of some cabinet portfolio holders are greater than the lo-
cal responsibilities of an MP" but ‘on balance the salary of an MP is about as sound a comparator as is likely to be found".

In con51der1ng the responses we also took mto account the remuneratlon payable to cha1rs and members of other

public bodies. We continue to believe that the allowances we have recommended are suitable. In particular, we think it
appropriate that Leaders should receive an allowance approximating to the salary of a Member of Partiament..

External paid appeintments

There has been some controversy over councillors accepting paid appointments in other public bodies, given their cu-
mulative remuneration. We asked the boroughs whether allowances should be adjusted to take into account external
payments from other public bodies. One authority thought it reasonable to ‘consider the balance of benefit to the local
area before determining whether ‘home” remuneration should be reduced accordingly’. Other boroughs disagreed.

We believe that if members take on extra work and responsibilities through undertaking external appointments, then
they should be entitled to retain the remuneration attracted by those responsibilities. Of course the borough might
reflect onthe extent to which the external duties are compatible with the time required to discharge duties within the
borough and adjust responsibilities accordingly.

Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board

These new bodies govern commissioning decisions across health, public health and social care. They must develop
with commissioning groups a shared understanding of the health and wellbeing needs of the community. They must
undertake a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and develop a joint strateqy for how these needs can bé'best addressed.
This will include recommendations for joint commissioning and integrating services across health and social care. The
Boards must drive local commissioning of health care, social care and public health and create a more effective and

" responsive local health and care system. They must also address other services that impact on health and wellbeing

such as housing and education.

‘Tt was recommended to us that the Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board should receive a special responsibility

allowance in Band Three, that designed for Cabinet members. We entirely agree: this is a statutory post conferring per-
sonal statutory responsibility. The role is of major importance to local government and should be remunerated accord-
ingly where they are councillors. In practice we imagine that Chairs of Health and Wellbeing Boards w1llbe members of
the Cabinet and have been remunerated within Band Three since their creation. . :

Lead Member for Children’s and Adult Services

It was suggested to us that the Lead Member for Children’s Serwces should receive a special responsibility allowance
higher than other Cabinet Members: ‘The enhanced duty of safeguarding for the role of lead member for Children’s

" Services and the time required to fulfil it makes the post a special case for an enhanced banding between the current

bands three and four."

Page 28




We well understand the heavy responsibility on the lead member for Children’s services and the consequences of any
failure in the system. We are entirely sympathetic to the view that the responsibility might warrant a higher special
responsibility allowance than other Cabinet members. In our 2010 report we specifically contemplated the different
weight of responsibilities of different portfolios and suggested that they might justify different allowances. Our rec-
ommended Band Three for Cabinet Members has a range of over £6,000 and we believe that this is sufficient to enable
boroughs to differentiate between the different weights of portfolios should they so decide.

Tt has also been suggested to us that the lead member responsible for adult safeguarding has a degree of résponsibiﬁty
equal to that of the lead member for children’s services. We are not convinced of the comparison.

Given the different allocation of responsibilities in different boroughs, we do not make specific recommendations on
differentiating special responsibility allowances for Cabinet members within Band Three. '

-Dependants’ Carers” Allowance- - — L

The Regulations authorise the payment to councillors of an allowance (‘the Dependants’ Carers ‘Allowance’) in respect
of the expenses of arranging for the care of children or dependants when the councillor attends meetings or is engaged
in other official duties. We received representations that the Allowance should be not less than the livingwage.

We strongly believe that the boroughs should make a dependants’ carers’ allowance available to their members. Ac-
cess to a dependants’ carers’ allowances can make it possible for a wider range of people to serve on their councils.
Specifically by payment of dependants’ carers’ allowance, boroughs can attract some who would not normally expect
to become councillors. 26 of the 32 boroughs provide in their allowances scheme for payment of dependants’ carers’
allowances. In those boroughs which do make a payment, allowances vary from £5.27 to £9.26 per hour (in one case
£15 pér hour for specialised care).

We recognise the need for payments to pay regard to local circumstances and the nature of specialist care. We betieve
that ordinary care should be remunerated at not less than the London living wage of £8.60 per hour; and (on presenta-
tion of proof of expense) payment should be made at a higher rate when specialist nursing skills are required.

Sickness, maternity and paternity leave

This issue has again been raised with us. We adhere to our recommendations in the 2006 report, repeated in 2010,
namely that councils should make arrangements in their members’ allowances schemes to allow the continuance of
special responsibility allowances in the case of sickness, maternity and paternity leave in the same terms that the
council’s employees enjoy such benefits (that is to say, they follow the same policies).

Members of social care and health scrutiny panels and‘cmporéte parenting panel

One borough suggested that service on the Social Care and Health Scrutiny Panels and the Corporate Parenting Panel
should be placed within Band One because of the risk profile of those roles.

We continue to recommend that the responsibility allowance payable under Band One should include membership of
committees, sub-committees and adoption panels where membership requires attendance with exceptional frequency
or for exceptionally long periods. If a Council believes that such memberships are substantially more onerous than
service on other committees, then we agree that they would be appropriately remunerated on Band One.

‘Page 29




Travel and subsistence allowances

We have been asked to give advice on travel and subsistence allowances. We continue to believe that the Basic Allow-
ance should cover all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred by councillors, including intra-borough travel costs
and expenses, though councils may consider that there are circumstances where it may be appropriate for a scheme
to provide payment for the cost of transport, e.g. journeys home after late meetings, and for people with disabilities.
We also continue to believe that, where travel and subsistence allowances are payable, they should be in accordance
with the current:scheme for travel and subsistence applicable to the Borough's staff; and that travel allowances should

extend to travel by bicycle.

Update for inflation

We continue to recommend that the allowances we recommend should be updated annua[ly in accordance with the
~headline figure inthe annual local government pay settlement.— -~ - e e

Sir Rodney Brooke CBEDL ~ Steve Bundred Anne Watts CBE

London
1June 2014

Page 30




Appendix A

Basic al'lowance £10,703

Spec:ial responsibiﬁiﬁes - beyond the basic allowance

The case for special allowances
The reasons for payment of additional special responsibility allowances should be clearly set out in local allowances
schemes. Special allowances should come into play only in positions where there are significant differences in the time

requirements and levels of responsibility from those generally expected of a councillor.

Calculation of special allowances
The proposed amounts for each band are a percentage of the figure suggested for a council leader depending upon

. levels of responsibility of the roles undertaken and are explained below. We believe that the SRA, which the previous

panel recommended for the leader ofa London counCIl (updated), continues to be appropriate.

Categories of special &iﬁewances

The regulations specify the following categories of responsibility for which special responsibility allowances may be paid:

Members of the executive where the authority is operating executive arrangements

Acting as leader or deputy leader.of a political group within the authority

Presiding at meetings of a committee or sub-committee of the authority, or a joint committee of the authority and
one or more other authorities, or a sub-committee of such a joint committee

Representing the authority at meetings of, or arranged by, any other body

Membership of a committee or sub-committee of the authority which meets with exceptlonalfrequency or for ex-
ceptionally long periods

Acting as spokesperson of a political group on a committee or sub- committee of the authonty

Membership of an adoption panel

Membership of a licensing or regulatory committee

Such other activities in relation to the discharge of the authority’s functions as require of the member an amount

of time and effort equal to or greater than would be required of him by any one of the activities mentioned above,
whether or not that activity is specified in the scheme.

Local discretion

It is for the councils locally to decide how to allocate their councillors between the different bands, having regard
to our recommendations and how to set the specific remuneration within the band. They must have regard to our
recommendations. We believe these should have the merits of being easy to apply, easy to adapt, easy to explain and
understand, and easy to administer. :

Page 31




BAND ONE
The posts we envisage falling within band one include:
Vice chair of a service, regulatory or scrutiny committee
Chair of sub-committee ‘
Leader of second or smaller opposition group
Service spokesperson for first opposition group
Group secretary (or equivalent) of majority group
First opposition group whip (in respect of council busmess)
»  Vice chair of council business
o Chairs, vice chairs, area committees and forums or community leaders
¢ (abinet assistant
» leadership of a strategic major topic
e Acting as a member of a committee or sub-committee which meets w1th exceptlonal
e frequency orfor exceptionally long periods
e Acting as a member of an adoption panel where membersh1p requ1res attendance w1th
——— « exceptional frequency or forexceptionally long periods — - B
* Leadership of a specific major project.

Remuneration

We propose that band one special responsibility allowances should be on a sliding scale of between 20 - 30 per cent of
the remuneration package for a council leader.

This would be made up as follows:
Basic allowance: £10,703
Band one allowance: £2,392 to £8,941

Total: £13,095 to £19,644

'BANDTWO
The types of office we contemplate being within band two are:
» Lead memberin scrutiny arrangements, such as chair of a scrutiny panel
* Representative on key outside body .
« Chair of major regulatory committee e.g. planning
»  Chair of council business (civic mayor)
» |eader of principal opposition group
» Majority party chief whip (in respect of council business).

Remuneration

We propose that band two allowances should be on a sliding scare between 40 - 60 per cent pro rata of the remuner-
ation package for a council leader. :

This is made up as follows:
Basic allowance £10,703
Band two allowances: £15,486 to £28,581 -

Total: £26,189 to £39,284

Page 32




BAND THREE

We see this band as appropriate to the followmg posts:
¢ (Cabinet member

e Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board

»  Chair of the main-overview or scrutiny committee
» Deputy leader of the council

Remuneration:

We propose that band three allowances should be between 70 - 80 per cent pro rata of the
remuneration package fora counml leader.

This is made up as follows:
Basic allowance: £10,703
Band three allowance £35,128 to £41,675

Total: £45,831 to £52,378

BAND FOUR

Leader of cabinet, including a strong leader.
This is a full-time job, involving a high level of responsibility and now mcludes the exercise of executive responsibil-

ities. It is right that it should be remunerated on a basis which compares with similar posmons in the public sector,
while still retaining a reflection of the voluntary character of public service. :

Remuneration:

We propose that the remuneration package for a council leader under band four of our scheme should be £64,824.

This is made up as follows:
' Basic allowance: £10,703
Band four allowance: £54,769

Total: £65,472

BAND FIVE

Directly elected mayor
A directly elected mayoris a full-time job with a high level of responsibility and exercises executive responsibilities over

afixed electoral cycle. It is right that it should be remunerated on a basis which compares with similar positions in the
public sector, while still retaining a reflection of the voluntary character of public service. However we believe this post
remains different to that of the strong leader with cabinet model. The directly elected mayor is directly elected by the
electorate as a whole. The strong leader holds office at the pOleasure of the counciland can be removed by the council.
We believe that the distinction is paramount and this should be reflected in the salary level. ’

Remuneration:

We propose that a band five directly elected mayor should receive a remuneration package of 25 per cent higher than
that recommended for a council leader and that it should be a salary set at £81,839.

Page 33




Appendix
On behalf of the community - a job profile for councillors -

Purposes:

1. To participate constructively in the good governance of the area.

2. To contribute actively to the formation and scrutiny of the authority’s policies, budget, strategies and service delivery.
3. To represent effectively the interests of the ward for which the councillor was elected, and deal with constituents’
enquiries and representations.

4.To champion the causes which best relate to the interests and sustainability of the community and campa1gn forthe
improvement of the quality of life of the community in terms of equity, economy and environment.

5. To represent the council on an outside body, such as a charitable trust or neighbourhood association.

Key Tasks:

1. To fulfil the statutory and local determined requirements of an elected member of a local authority and the author-
ity itself, including compliance with all relevant codes of conduct, and participation in those decisions and activities -
reserved to the full council (forexample, setting budgets, overall priorities, strategy). , '

2. To participate effectively as a member of any committee or panel to which the councillor is appointed, including
related responsibilities for the services falling within the committee’s (or panel’s) terms of reference, human resource
issues, staff appointments, fees and charges, and liaison with other public bodies to promote better understanding
and partnership working.

- 3. To participate in the activities of an outside body to which the councillor is appointed, providing two-way commu-

nication between the organisations. Also, for the same purpose, to develop and maintain a working knowledge of the
authority’s policies and practices in relation to that body and of the community’s needs and aspirations in respect of

that body’s role and functions.

. 4. To participate in the scrutiny or performance review of the services ofthe authority, including where the authority

so decides, the scrutiny of policies and budget, and their effectiveness in achieving the strategic objectives of the
authority.

5. To participate, as appointed, in the area and in serwce-based consultatwe processes with the community and with
other organisations. 6. To represent the authority to the community, and the community to the authority, through the
various forums available.

7. To develop and maintain a working knowledge of the authority’s services, management arrangements, powers/du-
ties, and constraints, and to develop good working relationships with relevant officers of the authority.

8. To develop and maintain a working knowledge of the organisations, services, act1v1t1es and other factors which im-
pact upon the community’s well-being and identity. :

9. To contribute constructively to open government and democratic renewal through active encouragement of the
community to participate generally in the government of the area.

10. To participate in the activities of any political group of which the councillor is a member.

11. To undertake necessary training and development programmes as agreed by the authority.

12. To be accountable for his/her actions and to report regularly on them in accessible and transparent ways.

Page 34




Appendix €

| The independent panel members

Sir Rodney Brooke has a long career in local government, including as chief executive of West Yorkshire County Council,
Westminster City Council and the Association of Metropolitan Authorities. He was knighted in 2007 for his contribution
to public service and is currently chairman of the Quality Assurance Agency for Higher Education.

Steve Bundred was chairman of Monitor, chief executive of the Audit Commission and chief executive of the London
Borough of Camden.

Anne Watts CBE has an extensive career in equality and diversity that spans the private, voluntary and public sectors
with organisations including the Open University, the Commission for Equality and Human Rights and Busmess inthe
Community. She cha1red the NHS Appomtments Commission.

Page 35




i
D e B e T St e ey 5
S e

T M R
S A oS
e

B AR R R
S eSO

,.x ..v..




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Establishment of a Pension Board
	5 Members Allowances Scheme 2015/16
	Appendix B Remuneration of Councillors in London 2014


